
AGENDA 
DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 5, 2024 
BETTY CHEEVER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

6:30P.M. 

I Call to Order 

II Roll Call 

III Approval of Minutes of September 5, 2024 Liquor Commission Meeting 

IV Application Hearing 

Bubbly Side of Life 
5131 Main 
Class WB 

V New Business 

VI Old Business 

VII Comments from the public 

VIII Adjournment 

I \liquor\2024-Liq-Com\Agenda.24109-05-24 



DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 
FIRE STATION #2 TRAINING ROOM 

5240 MAIN STREET 

Thursday, August 1, 2024 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Johnson called the August 1, 2024 Liquor Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: 

OTHERS: 

Mr. Fenton, Ms. Kastory, Ms. Rutledge, Chairman Johnson 

Mr. Mehta, Ms. Saucedo, Mr. Shah 

Carol Kuchynka, Liaison to the Liquor Commission, Assistant Village Attorney Brandan 
Rissman, 

Rachel Velez, Wiqar Khan, Court Reporter 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Johnson asked for approval of the minutes for the June 6, 2024 Liquor Commission meeting 
and asked members if there were any corrections, changes or additions. 

Hearing no additional changes, corrections or additions, the June 6, 2024 minutes of the Liquor 
Commission meeting were approved as written. 

Chairman Johnson reminded those present that this evening's meeting was being recorded on 
Village-owned equipment. Staff was present to keep minutes for the record. 

IV. APPLICATION FOR LIQUOR LICENSE 

Chairman Johnson made the following statements: 

"The next order of business is to conduct a public hearing for liquor license applications. For the benefit 
of all present, I would like to state that this Commission does not determine the granting or denial of the 
issuance of any license. We may, at the end of each hearing, make a finding or recommendation with 
respect to the application. If necessary, the Commission may adjourn a hearing to a later date in order to 
have benefit of further information." 

"At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission will determine any recommendations it wishes to 
make to the Liquor Commissioner" . 

"The Liquor Commissioner, who is the Mayor of Downers Grove, will, pursuant to Section 3-12 of the 
Ordinance, render decisions regarding issuance of available licenses." 

"Hearings by this Commission are held according to the following format: 1) reading of information 
pertinent to the application, 2) comments from the applicant, 3) discussion by the Commission, 4) 
comments from staff, 5) comments from the public, and 6) motion and finding by the Commission." 



7-Eleven - 6301 Main Street 

Chairman Johnson stated that the next order of business was an application from Sher Akbar Corporation 
d/b/a 7-Eleven #38976A located at 6301 Main Street. He stated that the applicant is seeking a Class "P-
2", beer and wine, off-premise consumption liquor license. 

Chairman Johnson asked that any individual(s) representing the applicant step forward and be seated. He 
asked that any individual(s) giving testimony, state and spell their name for the record, indicate their 
affiliation with the establishment and be sworn in by the court reporter. 

Ms. Rachel Velez introduced herself as the corporate representative from 7-Eleven. Mr. Wiqar Khan was 
sworn in by the court reporter. He introduced himself as the franchisee taking over the corporate 
location. 

Chairman Johnson asked them to explain their license request. 

Mr. Khan stated that he is a new franchisee taking over the existing 7-Eleven store at 6301 Main Street. 
He understood that there was some concern related to an underage alcohol sale at this location. He 
started that he has experience managing full-service hotels. He stated that they both serve and sell liquor 
at each of his managed locations. Mr. Khan stated he is fully aware of age restrictions and checking 
identification. 

Mr. Khan stated that he was aware of concerns with alcohol sales given the proximity to the high school. 
He stated that they have multiple locks on the doors and will lock them in a timely manner. He stated 
that the POS will also be set to require that employees scan identification for liquor sales. 

Ms. Velez stated that working locks are installed on the doors to be sure they are locked to prevent after 
hour sales. 

Ms. Velez stated that the age restrictive item in the POS system has been turned off and will require 
identification for any age restricted product. 

Chairman Johnson asked for questions from the Commission. 

Ms. Rutledge stated that they have answered her question about overriding the system. She asked them 
to explain the POS system and how it has been turned off. 

Ms. Velez stated that franchisees are allowed to decide how the POS system will operate. Mr. Khan 
added that only a manager or owner will have rights to modify restrictions. He stated that associates will 
not be able to modify the programming. 

Ms. Rutledge stated that this store is near her house where she sends her teenager to shop. She noted that 
the proximity to the high school is critical. She appreciated their efforts to put safeguards on the POS 
system so that the franchise can program and lock the cooler doors. 

Ms. Rutledge asked staff to refresh her memory about the violation at this store. Ms. Kuchynka replied 
that the violation occurred a very short time after the store opened. She stated that the POS system was 
overridden by the employee which bypassed scanning of the agent's identification. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that she made this very clear and explained to this applicant the concerns that the 
Village had concerning the ability to bypass the POS and the proximity to the high school. 



Mr. Khan added that he will be at the store during the evening and his wife will be running the store 
during the day. He stated that they both have hospitality and convenience store experience. He stated 
that he wife's family owned and operated gas stations with convenience stores in Connecticut and his 
family owned and operated stores in Virginia. He stated that they both have experience selling beer, 
wine and liquor. He noted that this store will only be selling beer and wine. 

Ms. Rutledge asked Mr. Khan if he is running other businesses. Mr. Khan replied no. He stated that he 
formerly worked for a full service Marriott/Hilton for over 16 years. 

Mr. Fenton noted that a previous violation occurred at this location and was glad that the scanning 
requirement is in place. 

Mr. Fenton asked if the doors have automatic or manual locks. Mr. Khan replied that they are manual 
but he will be looking into electronic locks that can be automatic. 

Mr. Fenton asked if all employees will be over 21. Mr. Khan replied ye. 

Ms. Kastory appreciated that extra restrictions that will be put in place. 

Ms. Kastory wondered if employees can override the system with their own personal identification. Mr. 
Khan replied that since the store was corporate, some employees may have been borrowed from other 
locations. He stated that as a franchisee, he will have his own regular employees who are fully trained. 
He stated that they plan to have qua1terly training refresher courses. He stated that he will personally 
have tests done at the site where secret shoppers come into to check the establishment. 

Ms. Kastory stated that the manual also referred to daily pre-shift meeting with staff. Mr. Khan replied 
yes. 

Chairman Johnson noted that he will be a new franchisee with positive changes. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Khan if his wife has a BASSET Certification. Mr. Khan replied not as of 
yet but will get it done. 

Chainnan Johnson noted that meetings could be more often than quarterly as employees can never be 
reminded enough of the importance of selling liquor. Chairman Johnson noted that pre-shift meetings 
were not a bad thing either. 

Chairman Johnson asked about security cameras. Ms. Velez stated that there are typically three 3 
cameras, a 360 view of the register, a camera on the gas island outside and another directed toward the 
cooler area with liquor. Mr. Khan stated that he plans on adding 6-8 cameras to give the associates more 
access to the site where they can be monitored by the register. He wanted them to be able to monitor if 
minors are at or near the beer areas. 

Chairman Johnson noted that extra cameras would be beneficial as the line of sight from the register to 
the cooler area may not be very good. 

Chairman Johnson asked if staff had any comments concerning the application. Ms. Kuchynka stated 
that factors affecting the finding or recommendation from this evenings meeting include receipt of an 
updated Certificate of Occupancy, receipt of the annual fee, satisfactory background checks and employee 
certifications. 

Chairman Johnson asked for comments from the public. There were none. 



Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chairman Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to their request for a 
Class P-2 liquor license. 

MS. RUTLEDGE MOVED TO FIND SHER AKBAR CORPORATION D/B/A 7-ELEVEN #38976A 
LOCATED AT 6301 MAIN STREET QUALIFIED FOR A CLASS "P-2", BEER AND WINE ONLY, 
OFF-PREMISE CONSUMPTION LIQUOR LICENSE. MS. KASTORY SECONDED. 

Aye: 

Nay: 

Abstain: 

Ms. Rutledge, Ms. Kastory, Mr. Fenton, Chairman Johnson 

None 

None 

MOTION CARRIED: 4:0:0 

V. NEW BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any new business. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that she planned to hold a meeting on September 5t1,_ It was noted that Labor Day 
holiday falls the week prior and that she would confirm their attendance via email. 

Ms. Kuchynka advised that she provided Council agenda item information on increasing the Brew 
Facility and Wine Boutique license classes which was approved on June 4th . Chairman Johnson asked 
about the brew facility. Ms. Kuchynka replied that it will be a similar operation to Goldfinger with 
manufacturing on the premises. She believed that there was some work that needs to be done with the 
building. 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any old business. 

Ms. Kuchynka referred to the month end reports for June and July. She stated that licenses have been 
issued to both Entourage and Hampton Inn and Suites. 

VII. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

There were none. No members of the public were present for comment. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Concluding business for the evening, Chairman Johnson called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Fenton 
moved to adjourn the August 1, 2024 meeting. The meeting was adjourned by acclimation at 6:47 p.m. 







 

  
   

   
 

    
  

  
 

   
   

 

 

  
   

   
 

  

   

   
     

   
    

       
    

       

   

              
                

              
          

                 
              
               

           

             

           

   

    

   































            
   

     
   

     
   

    

    

    
    

   
  

       
    

     
     

    

      
      

    

     
      
      

      
      

      
     

      
    

    

     
       

    

       
       

        

      
           



    
   

       
     

        

      

   

       
         

      
        

          
    

       
         

     
     

      

     
       

      
    

        

    
      

    

             
    

                 
        

                  
     

   



        
  

 

                  
                

   

                 
               

             

   

                 
                 

                  
            

               

      

 

   

               
                

               
              

               
      

                
          

              



 

                  
                

      

               
 

             
  

             
            
             

         

  

                 
              

                  
         

              
              

     
            

           
            

        

  

                  
      

                 
      

                
      



  
  

 

                    
      

           

               
  

        

            

                 

                   
              

            

             

            

           

        

        

               
 

      

                  
      

        

        

               

               
           

                  
       

            

             
 

               

                 

         

              
 



              
    

 

                

          

        

           

            

          

             

         

            

             

                  
 

                    

             
     

                  
       

            

        

      

     
                 

 

     

          
              





   
         

                   
   

               
      

  
              

              

   
    
  
    
   

           

   

              
              

     

                  

                   
   

                
 

                 
          

                   
              

             
     
               
                

            



                  
                   

 

   

               
    

                
             

                 
       

                 

  

            
         
                  

         
                

    
                       

        

         
                   

       
                

              
      
               

         
                   

                  
          









                  
                

     

                   
               

   

                 
       

              
 

            
      
        
       
                

           
      
     
    
     
       
     

                
  

                
          

                 
          
   

        
                  

       
               
           
       
              

              



                  
                  
     

             

    
                  

                 
               

 

                  

   

                
     

                  
  

                
   

                 
   

    

                  

                  
       

  
                     

  

         

   
     
      

        
    



   

             
          

  
    

            
    
       
    
    
       
         

    
         

              
      

       
           
       

          
               

         
    

        
        
        

   
       
         

   
            
             
         
         
         

    
         
            

   
    

           
      



             
    

            
   

            
    

           
  

   
          
              

   
       
           

    
             

       
    

         
         
            

 
            

          
           

   
         
         
         

    
          

  
           
          
            

          
            
            

   
                
              

      
  

            
           
      



   
              
     

          

     

              
                   

                   
                    
  

  

              
           
      
               

  
               
                 

                  
         

     

     

        

  

  

   

  

  



  

  

                 
    

                 
          

  

           

           

         

           

           

          

            
      

      

    

                  
                 

 

         

  

                  
   

                  
   



 

                 
  

     

                   
          

   

                  
           

      

    

              
             

 

                

     

               
            

               
   

               
 

                
              

       

                
  



    

              
          

                
     

      

            
        

               
  

             

        

                
           

               
          

  

                    
               
               
              

     

                   
                 

             
            

       

   

              
           

   



              
           
          

              

    

             

   

               
                

     

              
              
               

    
                 
               

                
   



  
  



  

           

   

        

      

            

          

         

          

             

        

      



      

 

        

       

             

    

               

 

         

  

      

   

      

       

 

      

         

         

         

  

             

   

       

  

             

    

        

          

       



  

  

               

     

    

        

             

           

     

     

  

      

              

      

          

           

       

           

      

     

        

         






















	08.01.24 REV Minutes
	Agenda_09.05.24
	Agenda_09.05.24
	Application_Redacted




